Sun	Mon	Tue	Wed	Thu	Fri	Sat
	April 07	April 08	April 09	April 10	April 11	April 12  Panther Service Day TIME: 9:30am – 12:30
April 13 Panther Leadership Awards & FSL Excellence Awards	April 21 <u>Tugs</u> (4:00PM)	April 22 EIU Giving Day: Postcards & Pizza Time: 11:00a – 1:00p  Greek Week Cookout & Games 6:00p – 7:30p	April 23  Tugs (4:00PM)	April 24  Order of Omega Case Study Competition (6:30pm – 9:30pm)	April 25 Tugs – Semi-Finals (4:00PM)  Airband/Stroll Dress Rehearsals (4:00pm – 7:15pm)	April 26  Tugs – Finals (12:00 PM)  Coronation (4:30pm)  Airband/Stroll Performance (5:00PM)

### Contents

E	IU Greek Week 2025 Event Calendar	1
G	reek Week General Rules and Regulations	4
Α	irband Information	5
R	ules and Regulations	5
	Airband Applications	6
	Deadlines	6
	Deductions	7
	Contact Information:	7
	Airband Score Sheet	7
	Waiver	7
	Tugs	9
	Rules and Regulations	9
	ALL ROSTERS, LIABILITY FORMS, SPORTSMAN LIKE CONDUCT FORMS AND CHAPTER CONDUCT CODES	9
	Deadlines and Deductions	12
	Tugs Applications	12
	Tugs Sportsman-Like Conduct Code	12
	Waivers	12
	Waiver for Men's Tugs	12
	Waiver for Women's Tugs	12
U	nity Information	13
	Rules and Regulations	13
	EIU Panther Service Day	15
	Unity Application	15
	Deadlines	15
	Deductions	15
	Rules and Regulations	16
	Greek Week Royalty Candidate Application	16
	Deadlines	16
C	andidates, please wear formal attire	16
Α	ppendix A – Airband Score Sheet	17
Α	ppendix B – Airband Waiver	19
		_

#### Eastern Illinois University Fraternity & Sorority Life Greek Week Packet - 2025

Appendix C – Greek Week Chapter Conduct Code	21
Appendix D – Tugs Sportsman-Like Conduct Code	22
Appendix E – Waiver for Men Tugs	23
Appendix F – Waiver for Women's Tugs	24
Appendix G – Greek Week Banner Rubric	25
Appendix H – Points Break Down	26

#### **Greek Week General Rules and Regulations**

- 1. Practices/Try-Outs/Tugs/ may not begin until February 4<sup>th</sup> of the spring academic semester that Greek Week is held in.
  - a. If chapter/pairing is found in violation they will begin to lose sportsmanship points.
  - b. Number of points lost will be decided by the Greek Week Steering Committee
- 2. Participants must be **undergraduate** students at Eastern Illinois University from an Interfraternity Council, Panhellenic Council, National Pan-Hellenic chapter, or NALFO chapter.
  - a. Graduate students may not participate in events during EIU Greek Week.
- 3. A fully active and dues paying member or new member of an Interfraternity Council, Panhellenic Council, National Pan-Hellenic chapter, or NALFO chapter.
- 4. Must be listed on chapters roster through the Office of Leadership and Engagement & Student Life Office.
- 5. The EIU Greek Week Steering Committee has the ability to make any rule changes as deemed necessary during an event and time of situation.
- 6. EIU Greek Week Steering Committee has the ability to make changes to the packet at any time and reload to the EIU Greek Week website.
- 7. Complaints or issues concerning a Greek Week event, incident, chapter, or pairing must be submitted via the Greek Week Complaint Form
  - a. Complaints will only be taken via the Greek Week complaint form
    - i. No emails, social media posts/messages, verbal complaints, etc. will be accepted.
    - ii. Complaints must be submitted no more than 12 hours after the Greek Week event, issue or incident.
    - iii. Timeframe for complaints are as follows:
      - 1. February 4, 2025, till April 26, 2025.
  - b. Once a complaint is submitted the Greek Week Overall Chairs, along with the Greek Week Overall Advisors, will meet to view complaint.
    - i. They will then set-up a meeting with the pairing in question to review their side.
    - ii. Once the meeting is concluded the pairing in question will receive an email with the decided outcome decided upon by the Greek Week Overall Chairs and the Greek Week Overall Advisors.
    - iii. Depending on the complaint, the Greek Week Overalls and Greek Week Overall Advisors have the ability to seek further evidence and conversation from the Greek Week Committee Chair and their Greek Week Committee Chair Advisors.
    - iv. Complaint decisions are final and may not be appealed.
  - c. Any fully active and undergraduate member (Initiated or New Member) may submit a Greek Week Complaint Form.
  - d. Link Greek Week Complaint Form

#### **Airband Information**

#### **Rules and Regulations**

- 1. Each pairing is allowed one group containing no more than **eighteen** people.
  - **a.** Each chapter within the pairing must provide a minimum of five individuals
  - **b.** The pairing has the option to select members to fill the additional spots as they chose.
- 2. Time Limit: The Airband routine may not be less than five (5) minutes long and no longer than eight (8) minutes long.
- 3. No dances, props or costumes may include any references to alcohol, controlled substances, racial insensitivity, etc.
- 4. Costumes can only be removed in an appropriate fashion. Instruments and props are permitted but may not be thrown at any time (Absolutely no throwing objects into the crowd). Your chapter(s) must be incorporated in some way, shape, or form (I.e. prop, throw what you know, verbal/appropriate chant.) All costume and prop changes and transitions must be submitted in writing no later than April 8, 2025. All props and costumes must be in good taste, the Airband committee maintains the right to reject any costume or prop. Any costumes that may be considered inappropriate need to be cleared with either the Airband Advisor or the Airband Chairs. Failure to do so may result in losing points.
- 5. Chapters may only practice Sunday Thursday. The practices may not exceed more than two hours per practice and must be completed before 11:00 pm.
- 6. Song Selections will be made at the **3/4/2025 meeting**.
  - a. NOTE: Song changes will not be accepted after the Airband meeting on 4/1/2025.
  - b. Song selections must include a minimum of two three that mention America.
  - c. Reference link: <a href="https://www.billboard.com/lists/best-america-songs-july-4th-anthems-usa">https://www.billboard.com/lists/best-america-songs-july-4th-anthems-usa</a>
- 7. All music must be submitted via USB in excellent condition. The USB must be turned into the Airband chairs no later than **April 1, 2025**.
  - a. NOTE: The USB must include pairing name and song choices.
- 8. The Airband rehearsals will be held Friday, April 25, 2025
  - a. ALL PARTICIPATING CHAPTERS/PAIRINGS ARE REQUIRED TO ATTEND THE STAGE REHEARSAL on April 25 FAILURE TO ATTEND WILL RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION.
- 9. Throughout each performance judges will be taking obscene or distasteful dances into consideration. At their discretion, they may deduct points for distasteful actions.
- 10. Costumes and props will be checked one week prior to the Airband performance.

- 11. Each Airband participant will have a \$50.00 limit for their costume. A chapter can't spend more than \$200.00 on all props.
  - a. Note: Costume and prop receipts are due April 1, 2025.
- 12. It is mandatory that there are four people on the stage during all times of the performance.
- 13. 10 Bonus Points if you incorporate a ribbon dance routine.
- 14. All members of Airband team must have their Panther Card the day of Airband for attendance.
  - a. NOTE: If Panther Card is not present, member will be unable to participate.
- 15. Line Up for Dress Rehearsal and day of Airband will be picked on April 1, 2025.

#### **Airband Applications**

Please complete the following Airband Application (online MachForms) by their designated due dates:

- Airband Informational Application 1 of 2 (will close March 4, 2025 at 8:00 PM)
- Airband Introduction Application 2 of 2 (will close April 1, 2025 at 8:00 PM)

#### **Deadlines**

#### March 4 @ 8:30pm (Coaches Meeting)

- -Due
- -Songs -Airband Personnel Sheet
- -Agendas/Deadline lists -Go over packet and contact information

#### April 1 @ 8:30pm (Coaches Meeting)

Due:

-Introduction Sheet -Costume and prop receipts -1 USB -Waivers for each participant

-Song lyrics -Drawing for times of performance

-Provide general practice schedule -Dress rehearsal schedule will be distributed

#### April 25 between 7:00pm - 10:00pm

- -First Airband rehearsal
- -Mandatory to pick ONE time slot from the Doodle Poll.
- -Costume required, all props required, 1 member in makeup to represent group

#### **April 26, 2024**

**@4:30pm** – Coronation Begins **@5:00pm** – Airband starts

#### **Deductions**

A deduction can either take points way from the overall final performance score or attendance points depending upon the violation.

**Performance Deductions** – Five (5) points will be taken away if any of the following happen:

- -If there is a prop, costume, move, or etc. added to the performance that wasn't shown during the final dress rehearsal.
- -If at least 4 people aren't on stage at all times.
- -If you exceed the time limit or don't meet the time minimum.
- -If you don't incorporate both chapter(s) in some way, shape, or form (I.e. prop, "throw what you know," verbal/chant, or sub-theme.)
- -If there is not collaboration of chapters throughout the performance.
- -The Airband Committee **DOES** have the final say to deduct points if there is any violation.
- Chapters/Pairings may not reserve or use the McAfee Gym for Airband rehearsals, try-outs, etc. until their slotted times during the Airband rehearsals week (April 25 and April 26). Chapters/Pairings that are found in violation will be subjected to either point deductions or disqualifications.

<u>Meetings Deductions</u> – Five (5) points will be taken from your attendance points if you do any of the following:

- -Do not show up at meetings, a representative from each chapter must be in attendance.
- -If paperwork or materials are turned in late.

#### **Contact Information:**

#### **Airband Advisor:**

Natasha Koenig nlkoenig@eiu.edu

#### **Airband Committee Chair**

Kaeleigh Hinthorn krhinthorn@eiu.edu

#### Airband Score Sheet

Please refer to Appendix A

#### Waiver

Please refer to Appendix B

7

#### **Step and Stroll Competition Information**

**Rules and Regulations** 

- 1. Only undergraduate members can participate.
- 2. Time Limit: The Step and Stroll routine may not be less than five (5) minutes long and no longer than eight (8) minutes long.
- 3. No dances, props or costumes may include any references to alcohol, controlled substances, racial insensitivity, etc.
- 4. Costumes can only be removed in an appropriate fashion. Instruments and props are permitted but may not be thrown at any time (Absolutely no throwing objects into the crowd). Your chapter(s) must be incorporated in some way, shape, or form (I.e. prop, throw what you know, verbal/ appropriate chant.)
- 5. Chapters may only practice Sunday Thursday. The practices may not exceed more than two hours per practice and must be completed before 11:00 pm.
- 6. Song Selections will be made at the 3/4/2025 meeting.
  - a. NOTE: Song changes will not be accepted after the Greek week meeting on 4/1/2025.
- 7. All music must be submitted via USB in excellent condition. The USB must be turned into Step and Stroll chairs no later than April 1, 2025.
  - a. NOTE: The USB must include pairing name and song choices.
- 8. The Step and Stroll rehearsals will be held Friday, April 25, 2025
- A. ALL PARTICIPATING CHAPTERS/PAIRINGS ARE REQUIRED TO ATTEND THE STAGEREHEARSAL on April 25 FAILURE TO ATTEND WILL RESULT IN DISQUALIFICATION.
- 9. Throughout each performance judges will be taking obscene or distasteful dances into consideration. At their discretion, they may deduct points for distasteful actions.
- 10. Costumes and props will be checked one week prior to the Step and Stroll performance.
- 11. It is mandatory that there are four people on the stage during all times of the performance.
- 12. 10 Bonus Points if you incorporate a ribbon dance routine.
- 13. All members of the Step and Stroll team must have their Panther Card on the day of Step and Stroll for attendance.
  - a. NOTE: If a Panther Card is not present, members will be unable to participate.

#### Tugs

### **Tugs**

#### **Rules and Regulations**

# ALL ROSTERS, LIABILITY FORMS, SPORTSMAN LIKE CONDUCT FORMS AND CHAPTER CONDUCT CODES ARE DUE NO LATER THAN MARCH 25, 2025

- 1. All forms mentioned above must be turned into the Office of Leadership and Engagement, or handed in at one of the steering committee meetings. There are NO exceptions or excuses that will be accepted after the due date. If you miss this deadline, your chapters WILL NOT participate in the event(s).
- 2. Committee Chairs will not be held responsible for names that cannot be read. If your roster is ineligible, we will count that as not having the forms completed.
- 3. During Tugs, there will be an area separating the tugs lane from the spectators. If any member of your chapter is in that lane at any time during Tugs, the team will be considered in violation of the conduct code, and will be disqualified.
- 4. If a team chooses to drop out of participation in a competition, they will forfeit their seed position. Their team will not place or earn participations points in said event.
- 5. The event will be held over the campus pond.
- 6. The rope will be entirely wet before the contest begins.
- 7. The start and end of a tug will be indicated by a **train horn or other amplified sound if train horn doesn't work.**
- 8. Only turf or plastic shoes are allowed. No metal cleats may be worn.
- 9. Judges will check participants' shoes prior to each tug (on the rope).
- 10. Substitutions of tuggers may be made before the tug, but must be from the alternate listed on the final roster.
- 11. The team that is able to get two tuggers (second tugger knee deep) on the opposing team in the water first will be declared the winner.
- 12. One false start will be allowed per team, per tug.
- 13. No team member may assume a position behind the anchorman at any time. No one but tugging members may touch the rope after the tug has begun to hold the slack. If necessary, a steering committee member will hold the slack.
- 14. The team coach may not touch the members once the tug has begun.
- 15. No more than two team coaches will be allowed in the lane, failure to adhere to this rule will result in immediate disqualification. Warnings will not be given.

- 16. Coaches must be a current EIU student and an active member of an Eastern Fraternity/Sorority organization.
- 17. A flagger is required for each team to utilize for the raising and lowering of the flag. The flagger must be a member of the chapter tugging, can be an alternate, and not the Coach. This person must be silent and clear-headed during the competition and cannot move from the flag position.
- 18. Only the contestants' feet may touch the ground, unless the participant(s) slip or fall in that event, a judge will issue a verbal warning and the contestant will have 5 Mississippi's by the judge's count to resume their position. If five Mississippi's are exceeded, and the tugger has not resumed to their position on the rope, then the individual will be disqualified.
- 19. NO SITTING ON FEET WILL BE ALLOWED. If caught sitting for more than 5 Mississippi's count by a judge, the individual will be disqualified.
- 20. Teams must stay in the tug lanes, or the team will be disqualified.
- 21. Any attachment to a stable object (i.e. fence pole, tree, boulder, light pole with concrete block, a vehicle, etc.) will result in immediate disqualification, without warning during Round 1, Round 2, Semi-Finals, and Championship tugs. This includes Tugs practices.
- 22. Other immediate disqualifications will result if: a. Intentional forward motion during the explosive stage. b. Intentional releasing of the rope. c. Intentional interference with the judges occurs (by any member of the chapter)
- 23. The rope will be entirely placed in the pond immediately after the prior tug. The team will be given a two-minute time limit to dry the rope. Following, the team will then have one minute to approach the rope. The team will then have a maximum of two minutes to get set. When the horn sounds the tug will begin and then the horn sounds for the second time when the tug has ended.
- 24. There will be a two-minute time limit from "Tuggers get set" to "Your team's flag is down." If that time limit is broken, it will be considered a false start.
- 25. If a team refuses/declines to tug at any point, they forfeit their position and will not receive participation points for the event.
- 26. If three or more of the tuggers have been removed from the rope by judges or have voluntarily removed themselves from the rope the tug will be called due to the safety of the tuggers and the opposing team will have won that tug.
- 27. If the Anchor has been removed from the rope by the judges or have voluntarily removed or untied themselves from the rope the tug will be called due to the safety of the tuggers and the opposing team will have won that tug.

#### **Coaches Meeting Information:**

- 1. Tugs first meeting is March 25, 2025, at 8:30 PM
- 2. Tugs second meeting is April 8, 2025, at 8:30 PM

#### Men's Tugs

#### NO TRAINING, CONDITIONING OR PRACTICES AS A TEAM UNTIL FEBRUARY 4, 2025

Chapters may only practice Sunday – Thursday. The practices may not exceed more than two hours per practice and must be completed before 11:00pm.

Failure to abide by the above practice regulations may result in the following:

- Verbal warning by the Greek Week Steering committee
- Greek Week pairing will lose sportsmanship points
- Tug Team will be disqualified from participating in Tugs.

No tugging on the following areas: Rugby Field, Football field, Church behind Sigma Phi Epsilon, the pond, IM fields, band practice field. Greek Week Steering Committee has the right to add more areas to this list at any time.

- 1. Every member will sign a liability form and return it to the Rules and Games Committee by **March 25, 2025** or the entire team will not tug. **NO EXCEPTIONS**.
- 2. Every member must also sign the sportsman like conduct agreement before they will be allowed to tug. This is also due by **March 25, 2025.**

#### Rope Size:

1. Each team will consist of no more than eight total men (six on the rope with two of them being alternates)

#### **WOMEN'S TUGS**

#### NO TRAINING, CONDITIONING OR PRACTICES AS A TEAM UNTIL FEBRUARY 4, 2025

Chapters may only practice Sunday – Thursday. The practices may not exceed more than two hours per practice and must be completed before 11:00pm.

Failure to abide by the above practice regulations may result in the following:

Verbal warning by the Greek Week Steering committee

Greek Week pairing will lose sportsmanship points

Tug Team will be disqualified from participating in Tugs.

No tugging on the following areas: Rugby Field, Football field, Church behind Sigma Phi Epsilon, the pond, IM fields, band practice field. The Greek Week Steering Committee has the right to add more areas to this list at any time.

- 1. Every member will sign a liability form and return it to the Games Committee by **March 25, 2025** or the entire team will not tug. **NO EXCEPTIONS.**
- 2. Every member must also sign the sportsman like conduct agreement before they will be allowed to tug. This is also due by **March 25, 2025.**

#### Rope Size:

1. Each team will consist of eight total women (six on the rope, with two alternates)

#### **Deadlines and Deductions**

Please refer to previously provide information for <u>multiple deadline and deduction items</u>

#### **Tugs Applications**

Tugs Sportsman-Like Conduct Code

Please refer to Appendix D

#### Waivers

Waiver for Men's Tugs

Please refer to Appendix C

Waiver for Women's Tugs

Please refer to Appendix D

#### **Tugs Advisor:**

Nathan Wehr

njwehr@eiu.edu

#### **Committee Chair:**

**Trevor Vincent** 

tjvincent@eiu.edu

# Unity Information Rules and Regulations

#### **Banner**

- 1. Banner must incorporate Greek Week Theme.
- 2. Banner must include pairings chapter's letters and symbols.
- 3. Banner cannot degrade EIU, another chapter, chapters, or a staff member of the University.
- 4. Please be creative, but yet appropriate and tasteful.
- 5. Banners need to be turned in to Nathan's or Natasha's office by 4:30pm on APRIL 18!

#### a. BANNERS MUST BE FULLY DRIED!!

- b. If not turned in on this date, chapters will receive a 5-point deduction.
- 6. Banner will be hung between the following dates:
  - a. Monday, April 21 Saturday, April 26, 2025.
- 7. Banners **MUST BE** the following size:
  - a. 3ft wide and 6ft tall.
- 8. Pairings will draw for a window number at the 3/25/25 Greek Week delegate meeting.
- 9. NPHC chapters and NALFO chapters can create a community chapter Greek Week banner. They will have their own window.
- 10. Please refer to Appendix J for Greek Week Banner Scoring Rubric

#### **EIU Giving Day – Pizza and Postcards w/ University Advancement**

- 1. Will take place on Tuesday, April 22, 2025
- 2. Location: University Union
- 3. Time of Event: 11:00am 1:00pm
- 4. Food and beverages will be provided!
- 5. Chapters will earn points for participating as follows:
  - a. 1% 49.9% of chapter members that write 3 postcards, will earn 25 points
  - b. 50% 100% of chapter members that write 3 postcards, will earn 75 points.
- Each chapter will be award points within their pairing, triple pairings will be awarded points as if they are a double pairing.

#### **Greek Week Cookout & Games**

- 7. Will take place on Tuesday, April 22, 2025
- 8. Location will take place in The Egg at Greek Court
- 9. Time of event will be 6:00pm 7:30pm
- 10. Food, beverages, and games will be provided.
- 11. Chapters will earn points for attending as follows:
  - a. 1% 49.9% of chapter in attendance, will earn 25 points
  - b. 50% 100% of chapter in attendance, will earn 50 points.
- 12. Each chapter will be award points within their pairing, triple pairings will be awarded points as if they are a double pairing.

#### **Order of Omega Case Study Competition**

- 1. The **PURPOSE** of the Case Study Competition is to provide an educational learning experience for those undergraduate members of fraternities or sororities as well as fraternity/sorority professionals.
- 2. The Case Study Competition provides both participants and judges with a practical educational opportunity to learn from each other. Participants and judges establish professional relationships and networks which foster future professional development opportunities.
- 3. Confidentiality regarding the cases used for the Case Study Competition must be maintained at all times. Participants may only discuss the case study with their partner. They may not give the case study to anyone else to read. Participants may use any other resources that are available to them except another person as noted above.
  - a. Failure to keep the case study confidential will result in either point deduction or removal from participating.

#### 4. Participants

- a. Judges are there to provide positive constructive feedback.
- b. Remember this is a practical educational learning experience.
- c. Try to put yourself in the role of the judges.
- d. Have a positive attitude.
- e. Be realistic throughout your presentation.

#### 5. Judges

- a. There are three judges for the case study.
- b. Judges will present a final ranking of all teams that have participated.
- c. Judges will NOT make decisions regarding disqualification of participants. Decisions of this nature rest solely with the Office of Leadership and Engagement.

#### 6. E. General Outline for Presentations

- a. Participants are directed to seats.
- b. Participants introduce themselves to judges.
- c. Judges introduce themselves to participants.
- d. Spokesperson (Judge) asks participants to "Please begin".
- e. Participants present the case for 15 minutes.
- f. Participants inform judges "This completes our presentation".
- g. Judges ask questions of participants and provide participants with oral feedback. (5min)
- h. Participants are excused.

#### 7. Rules & Regulations for Presentations

- a. Due to electronic device rental fees and a disadvantage to those without access to such devices, use of technology in the presentation is prohibited.
- b. Participants may have notes to present from.
- c. Books, websites, and other relevant material may be used as resources for the presentation.
- d. Participants may not ask any other person besides their partner for assistance or advice in handling the case.
- 8. Pairings will select/provide two three individuals from their pairing to participate. One individual must be from a fraternity and one two individuals must be from a sorority.

- 9. Pairings will receive 20 points for participation.
- 10. Pairings will be receiving the following points and monetary compensation
  - a. First Place 30 points, plus \$250.00 dollars split among participants.
  - b. Second Place 20 points, plus \$150.00 dollars split among participants.
  - c. Third Place 10 points, plus \$100.00 dollars split among participants.
- 11. Participants will receive the Case Study on Monday, April 21, 2025, at 9:00pm.
- 12. Order of Omega Case Study judging will be taking place on Thursday, April 24, 2025.

#### **EIU Panther Service Day**

- Will take place on Saturday, April 12, 2025.
- Locations and Time will be provided in the upcoming weeks.
- Chapters will receive points as follows for participating:
  - o 1% 49.9% of chapter members participating
    - Each chapter will receive 50pts, potential for 100 pts for the pairing
  - o 50% 100% of chapter members participating
    - Each chapter will receive 75pts, potential for 150 pts for the pairing.
- Each chapter will be award points within their pairing, triple pairings will be awarded points as if they are a double pairing.
- Chapters will register via the Panther Service Day registration form.

#### **Animal Shelter Drive**

- All donations will be given to the Coles County Animal Shelter
- Each chapter will gather their donations and bring them to Nathan's Office (Oakland Room)
  - o Deadline February 26, 2025 by 4:30pm
- Each PAIRING can earn a maximum of 100pts (50pts per chapter).
- Three-chapter pairings will still have the maximum of earning 50pts through donations.
- Refer to flyer for how to earn points.

#### **Unity Application**

Please complete the following Unity Application (online Mach Forms) by its designated due date:

Greek Unity – Informational Application (will close March 25, 2025 by 11:59 PM)

#### **Deadlines**

- 1. All applications must be turned in by March 25.
- 2. If applications are not turned in at this time, the organization will be deducted points.

#### **Deductions**

1. If there is cheating throughout the event, there will be no points given to the pairing.

#### **Election & Coronation Information**

#### **Rules and Regulations**

#### **Breakdown of Scoring for Coronation**

- 25% will be scored on the Application
- 15% will be scored on Votes
- 60% will be scored on Interview Video
- There will be one Greek Week royalty from each category.
- There will be a one Runner-Up from each category

#### **Greek Week Royalty Candidate Application**

Please complete the following Greek Week Royalty Candidate Application (online Mach Form) by its designated due date:

• Greek Week Royalty Candidate Application (will close February 18, 2025, at 11:59 PM)

#### Deadlines

- Tuesday, Feb. 18, 2025:
  - o Greek Week Royalty Apps. are due online via above Mach Form at 11:59 pm.
- Tuesday, March 25, 2025:
  - Mandatory Coronation meeting.
  - If you can't make the meeting contact Charley Shelton or Mia Hromek for a make-up meeting.

#### • Tuesday, April 1, 2025 by 8:00pm

- o Candidate interview videos will be due by 8:00pm.
- o If videos are submitted late, a 5-point deduction will be taken for the late submission.
- Video questions will be provided at the March 25, 2025, candidate meeting.
- Videos may not be longer than 5 minutes and must cover all questions.
- o Candidates may wear appropriate apparel that represents their organization.
- Videos must be filmed in an appropriate space either on-campus or off-campus.
- o Videos must be submitted via an unlisted YouTube link to njwehr@eiu.edu.
- Saturday, April 26, 2025: Coronation

# Candidates, please wear formal attire.

#### **Committee Chair:**

Charley Shelton & Mia Hromek <a href="mailto:cashelton2@eiu.edu">cashelton2@eiu.edu</a> & <a href="mailto:achromek@eiu.edu">achromek@eiu.edu</a>

# Appendix A – Airband Score Sheet

Airband Score Sheet – 2025	Judge #:
(1 reflects lowest possible score, 10 reflects high	est possible score)
Pairing Name:	

Judging Categories	Scoring	Judges	(+) Strong Areas/	Judge Comments
	Range	Score	Needs Improvement (-)	
Showmanship	15		(+) Expression (-) (+) Team Image (-) (+) Crowd Appeal (-) (+) Projection (-)	
Spacing/Formations/ Transitions	10		(+) Creativity (-) (+) Spacing (-) (+) Variety (-) (+) Flow (-) (+) Use of Floor (-)	
Style Execution	10		(+) Body Control (-) (+) Sharpness (-) (+) Technique (-)	
Synchronization/ Precision	15		(+) Timing (-) (+) Sharpness (-) (+) Clean (-) (+) Visual Appeal (-)	
Choreography	10		(+) Move Variety (-) (+) Uniqueness (-) (+) Pace/Tempo (-) (+) Use of Music (-)	
Routine Difficulty	10		(+) Complex Moves (-) (+) Difficulty (-) (+) Rhythm (-) (+) Transitioning (-)	
Pairing Collaboration	10		Both Chapters Represented/Incorporated Four members at all times Worked together in performance	
Overall Execution	10		(+) Synchronization (-) (+) Precision (-) (+) Timing (-) (+) Clean Routine (-)	
Overall Routine Impression	10		(+) Entertaining (-) (+) Energy/pace (-) (+) Creativity (-) (+) Costumes (-) (+) Dances Moves (-)	
Deductions:	(-)		Additional Comments:	
Total Score (100 pts.)				

# Appendix B – Step & Stroll Score Sheet

Airband Score Sheet – 2025	Judge #:
(1 reflects lowest possible score, 10 reflects highe	est possible score)
Pairing Name:	

Judging Categories	Scoring	Judges	(+) Strong Areas/	Judge Comments
	Range	Score	Needs Improvement (-)	
Showmanship	15		(+) Expression (-) (+) Team Image (-) (+) Crowd Appeal (-) (+) Projection (-)	
Spacing/Formations/ Transitions	10		(+) Creativity (-)	
Style Execution	10		(+) Body Control (-) (+) Sharpness (-) (+) Technique (-)	
Synchronization/ Precision	15		(+) Timing (-) (+) Sharpness (-) (+) Clean (-) (+) Visual Appeal (-)	
Choreography	10		(+) Move Variety (-) (+) Uniqueness (-) (+) Pace/Tempo (-) (+) Use of Music (-)	
Routine Difficulty	10		(+) Complex Moves (-) (+) Difficulty (-) (+) Rhythm (-) (+) Transitioning (-)	
Overall Execution	10		(+) Synchronization (-) (+) Precision (-) (+) Timing (-) (+) Clean Routine (-)	
Overall Routine Impression	10		(+) Entertaining (-) (+) Energy/pace (-) (+) Creativity (-) (+) Costumes (-) (+) Dances Moves (-)	
Deductions:	(-)		Additional Comments:	
Total Score (90 pts.)				

# Appendix C – Airband Waiver

# **2025 Airband Waiver**

#### Eastern Illinois University Liability Release, Waiver, Discharge and Covenant Not to Sue

This is a legally binding release made by me, _	(Please Print)(Hereinafter referred to as
"Releaser") to Eastern Illinois University (Herei	nafter referred to as "Institution").
Airband. The following is a description and exa associated with this activity: travel to and from	ks to which I may be exposed by participation in the Greek Week imples of specific, significant, non-obvious dangers and risks in the conference, conference participation and recreation/social of require me to participate in this activity, but I want to do so, pite this Release.
this activity. In consideration of and return for Institution in this activity, I release the Instituti all liability, claims, and actions that may arise f property in connection with this activity. I und	If all of these risks and responsibilities in any way associated with the services, facilities, and other assistance provided to me by the ion (and this governing board, employees, and agents) from any and from injury or harm me, from my death, or from damage to my derstand this Release covers liability, claims and actions caused of the Institution (or its governing board, employees, or agents), e or failure to supervise the Institution.
	up, among other things, rights to sue the Institution, its governing nages, or losses I may incur. I also understand the release binds my s well as me.
I have read this entire release, I fully understar	nd it, and agree to be legally bound by it.
This is a release of your rights. READ CAREFUL	LY BEFORE SIGNING!!
Releaser's Signature	Date
Guardian's Signature (if releaser is under 18)	Date

# Appendix D – Step & Stroll Waiver

# 2025 Airband Waiver

#### Eastern Illinois University Liability Release, Waiver, Discharge and Covenant Not to Sue

This is a legally binding release made by me, _ 'Releaser") to Eastern Illinois University (Here	(Please Print)(Hereinafter referred to as inafter referred to as "Institution").
Step & Stroll Competition. The following is a dand risks associated with this activity: travel to	ks to which I may be exposed by participation in the Greek Week escription and examples of specific, significant, non-obvious dangers and from the conference, conference participation and institution does not require me to participate in this activity, but I and risks and despite this Release.
this activity. In consideration of and return fon institution in this activity, I release the Institute all liability, claims, and actions that may arise to property in connection with this activity. I under the connection with this activity.	elf all of these risks and responsibilities in any way associated with rethe services, facilities, and other assistance provided to me by the ion (and this governing board, employees, and agents) from any and from injury or harm me, from my death, or from damage to my derstand this Release covers liability, claims and actions caused of the Institution (or its governing board, employees, or agents), are or failure to supervise the Institution.
	g up, among other things, rights to sue the Institution, its governing nages, or losses I may incur. I also understand the release binds my s well as me.
have read this entire release, I fully understa	nd it, and agree to be legally bound by it.
This is a release of your rights. READ CAREFUL	LLY BEFORE SIGNING!!
Releaser's Signature	Date
	<del></del>
Guardian's Signature (if releaser is under 18)	Date

### Appendix E – Greek Week Chapter Conduct Code

Chapter Conduct Code		
l,	as the acting President of the	chapter,
all Greek Week sponsored even whether they are participating i community. We also agree to tr manner we would like to be tre member can result in sportsma event. Greek Week staff also po	the behavior of my entire Chapter. The Chapter understas and games. We understand appropriate behavior is explembers of the event or a member of the audience, or wistat all committee members, staff, judges and other Greek ted. Furthermore, the Chapter understands that violation ship point deductions or disqualification of the entire teassess the power to disqualify any Chapter from participathed extremely unsportsmanlike.	pected from all members thin the Charleston of Week participants in the of this code by any om or Chapter at any
Chapter President	Greek Week Delegate	

This form is to be turned into the Greek Week Steering Committee on March. 25, 2025, at the Greek Week Delegates Meeting

Overall Greek Week Co-Chair

Overall Greek Week Co-Chair

# Appendix F – Tugs Sportsman-Like Conduct Code

Everyone must sign this before they will be allowed to participate in any event! If anyone from a team does not sign this code, the entire team will be disqualified.

Eastern Illinois University, Panhellenic Cou	ncil, Inte	chapter, I agree to uphold the standards of rfraternity Council, and National Pan-Hellenic Council regarding iate treatment of judges, steering committee members, staff
and other Greek Week participants. I have which I am participating. If I should choose Week Committee and my Chapter Presider	also hav not to a nt. The fi times re	e read and understand the rules that apply to the event in dhere to this code, my actions will be reviewed by the Greek nal decision will rest with the Greek Week Committee. In present the Greek Community in a positive manner. Failure to
TEAM MEMBERS		
PRINT NAME & E-Number		Sign
1	_	
2	_	
3	_	
4	_	
5	_	
6		
<u>ALTERNATES</u>		
PRINT NAME & -Number	Sign	
1		
2		
<u>COACHES</u>		
PRINT NAME & E-Number	Sign	
1		
2	<del>.</del>	nto Nother's office by March 25, 2025

This form is to be turned into Nathan's office by March 25, 2025.

# Appendix G – Waiver for Men Tugs

# Eastern Illinois University Liability Release, Waiver, Discharge and Covenant Not to Sue

This is a legally binding release made by me,	(Please Print)
(Hereinafter referred to as "Releaser") to Eastern Illi	nois University (Hereinafter referred to as "Institution").
<b>Week Men's Tugs.</b> The following is a description and risks associated with this activity: travel to and from	ion does not require me to participate in this activity, but I
associated with this activity. In consideration of and to me by the Institution in this activity, I release the from any and all liability, claims and actions that may damage to my property in connection with this activicaused entirely or in part by any acts or failures to acagents), including but not limited to negligence, mist I recognize that this Release mean I am giving governing board, employees, and agents for injuries.	ng up, among other things, rights to sue the Institution, its , damages, or losses I may incur. I also understand this release is, as well as me. I have read this entire release, I fully
READ CAREF	ULLY BEFORE SIGNING!!!
 Date	Releaser's Signature
Date	Guardians Signature (if releaser is under 18 years of age)

### Appendix H – Waiver for Women's Tugs

# Eastern Illinois University Liability Release, Waiver, Discharge and Covenant Not to Sue

This is a legally binding release made by me	2,	(Please Print)
(Hereinafter referred to as "Releaser") to Ea	astern Illinois University (Hereinafter re	ferred to as "Institution").
I fully recognize that there are dangers and <u>Women's Tugs</u> . The following is a description associated with this activity: travel to and fractivities. I understand the Institution does despite the possible dangers and risks and control of the con	on and examples of specific, significant, om the conference, conference particip not require me to participate in this act	nonobvious dangers and risks pation and recreation/social
I, therefore agree to assume and take on methis activity. In consideration of and return function in this activity, I release the Institution in this activity, I release the Institutional liability, claims and actions that may arise property in connection with this activity. I u entirely or in part by any acts or failures to a including but not limited to negligence, missing the control of the	for the services, facilities and other assicution (and its governing board, employe from injury or harm me, from my deanderstand this release covers liability, cat of the Institution (or its governing b	stance provided to me by the vees, and agents) from any and th, or from damage to my claims and actions caused oard, employees, or agents),
I recognize that this Release mean I am givin board, employees, and agents for injuries, of heirs, executors, administrators and assigns agree to be legally bound by it. This is a rele	lamages, or losses I may incur. I also un , as well as me. I have read this entire r	derstand this release binds my
READ CAR	EFULLY BEFORE SIGNING	<u> </u>
Date	Releaser's Signature	-
Date	Guardians Signature (if releaser is und	_ er 18 years of age)

# Appendix I – Greek Week Banner Rubric

# Greek Week 2025 Greek Week Banner Rubric

Pairing Name:										
1. Greek Week Theme Incorporated:										
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
2. Pairing Chapter	Sy	ml	ool	ls/	Le	tte	rs	in	CO	rporated:
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
3. Creativity:	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10
Total Points:										

Appendix J – Points Break Down

	Participation	3rd	2nd	1st
Airband	15	20	35	50
Stroll Competition	15	20	35	50
Tugs	15	20	35	50
Greek Week Royalty	5		10	15
Delegate Meeting (Representatives from each pairing must be in attendance to get 10 points each)	10 x 7 = 70 x 2 = 140			
Greek Week Banner	5	7	10	15
Panther Service Day	5		50/100	75/150
GW Cookout & Games	5		25/50	50/100
OoO Case Study	20	10	20	30
Animal Shelter	5			50/100
Postcards & Pizza	5		25/50	75/150
Greek Week Speaker	5		25/50	50/100
Sportsmanship	25			
Collaboration Points	25			
FSL Award Ceremony			25	50
Award Submission (Per Chapter Award Submission)	10 x 7 = 70 x 2 = 140			
Total Points	430	77	295	585

More information on the next page:

Updated: Tuesday, April 15, 2025

SC.

Awards Ceremony	Points
1st Place – 50%+	50 pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place – 1% - 49.9%	25pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
Panther Service Day	Points
1st Place – 50%+	75pts per chapter, 150 for pairing
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place – 1% - 49.9%	50pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
Greek Week Cookout & Games	Points
1st Place – 50%+	50pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place – 1% - 49.9%	25pts per chapter, 50 for pairing
Greek Week Speaker	Points
1 <sup>st</sup> Place – 50%+	50 pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place – 1% - 49.9%	25pts per chapter, 100 for pairing
Postcards and Pizza	Points
1 <sup>st</sup> Place – 50%+ (Member writes 3	75pts per chapter, 150 for pairing
postcards)	
2 <sup>nd</sup> Place – 1% - 49.9% (Member	25pts per chapter, 50 for pairing

#### <u>Panther Leadership Awards that are eligible for Award Submission Points:</u>

- Inclusive Community Award
- Lead by Example Award

writes 3 postcards)

#### FSL Excellence Awards that are eligible for Award Submission Points:

- Chapter of the Year Award
- Chapter Program of the Year
- Most Improved FSL Chapter of the Year
- Fraternity and Sorority Advocate (Chapter will receive only 10pts no matter how many submissions)
- FSL Alumni of the Year (Chapter will receive only 10pts no matter how many submissions)